





....

Software for the determination of extinguishing gas holding times





Sole Agency for Europe, Springe-Eldagsen, Germany



Software publisher for eco-construction, Lille, France

All rights to the software BlowerDoor FireProtection are reserved to dooApp SARL, Port Fluvial, Bâtiment F, 59000 Lille, France

Published by

BlowerDoor GmbH MessSysteme für Luftdichtheit Zum Energie- und Umweltzentrum 1 D-31832 Springe-Eldagsen

Phone +49 5044 975-40 Fax +49 5044 975-44 info@blowerdoor.com www.blowerdoor.com

All rights reserved. This Reference Guide including all illustrations is copyright protected. Any use beyond the scope of use granted by copyright law without prior approval of the publishers is unlawful and can be prosecuted. This particularly applies to copying, translating, microfilming, as well as storing and processing in electronic systems.

Table of Contents

1	Intro	troduction6							
	1.1	Application purpose and description							
	1.2	Measurement principle 6							
2	Set-u	p possibilities for the field calibration check of the measuring system7							
3	Requi	rements							
	3.1	System requirements for the software9							
	3.2	Requirements for the BlowerDoor measuring system 10							
	3.3	Recommended accessories for the field calibration check							
4	Activa softw	ating dooApp cloud account and installing Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection vare							
	4.1	Step no. 1: Activating the dooApp account11							
		4.1.1 Completing your profile and company information12							
		4.1.2 Optional: Adding and managing other users							
	4.2	Step no. 2: Downloading and installing the software							
	4.3	Starting Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection15							
	4.4	Overview home menu							
	4.5	Changing software language17							
5	FireP	rotection software: Configuration18							
	5.1	Global settings							
		5.1.1 Technician							
		5.1.2 Company							
		5.1.3 Customers							

		5.1.4	Devices	. 20			
		5.1.5	Add a device and define calibration information in FireProtection software	. 21			
		5.1.6	Templates	. 22			
		5.1.7	Archiving	. 22			
		5.1.8	Other settings	. 23			
	5.2	dooApp	o cloud settings	. 23			
6	FirePr	otection	ı projects	. 24			
	6.1	Project	list and saving status	. 24			
	6.2	Import/Export project files					
	6.3	Creatin	g a new project	. 25			
	6.4	Entering general information about project and tested enclosure					
	6.5	Configuring the installed extinguishant					
		6.5.1	Extinguishant	. 29			
		6.5.2	Configuration	. 30			
	6.6	Custom	er	. 33			
	6.7	Devices		. 34			
	6.8	Setting	up a door fan test and importing measurement data	. 35			
		6.8.1	Configuration	. 35			
		6.8.2	Measurement data (Data entry)	. 37			
		6.8.3	Field calibration check	. 39			
		6.8.4	Pressure differential measurement during hold time (Pbh)	. 41			
	6.9	Hold tin	ne	. 43			
	6.10	Report		. 45			
	6.11	Custom	izing report templates and using them	. 46			

7	dooApp cloud services				
	7.1	Log in to dooApp cloud account	. 48		
	7.2	Managing contacts for all users of your team	. 49		
	7.3	Managing devices	. 50		

1 Introduction

1.1 Application purpose and description

With the Minneapolis BlowerDoor measuring system and the Fire Protection Software, you can easily and accurately determine extinction gas holding times in accordance with ISO 14520:2015, ISO 14520:2006, EN 15004:2008, EN 15004:2019, VdS 2380:2019-03 and VdS 2381:2016-06 in rooms of rectangular volume.

The cloud-based software can be installed free of charge on multiple computers and used with multiple employees of a team or a group of companies. The charge for the use is made via a prepurchased number of tokens; one token will be deducted from your subscription when you import a measurement file – regardless of which user on your team.

1.2 Measurement principle

The door fan test according to the standard forms the basis for the measuring process. You first check the leakage at constant pressure difference with a BlowerDoor measuring system: BlowerDoor Standard, BlowerDoor MiniFan, or BlowerDoor MultipleFan incl. digital pressure gauges DG-1000 or DG-700. Then you perform the door fan test with TECTITE Express 5.1 resp. TECLOG 4 (both according to ISO 9972 or EN 13829), TECTITE Express 4.1, or TECLOG 3 software (→ corresponding reference guides for BlowerDoor measuring systems).

The subsequent field calibration check – another door fan test with a defined additional leakage area (sharp-edged circular calibration check orifice) – is a plausibility check of the correct set-up and the proper function of the measuring systems.

The FireProtection Software calculates the hold time according to the above mentioned regulations from the measured values of the door fan tests. Therefore, the exported data from TECTITE Express (BLD file) is read into the FireProtection Software.

Note: TECLOG 3 and TECLOG 4 BLD-export files must first be opened and saved in TECTITE Express so that they can be then read into FireProtection.

The use of the FireProtection Software requires knowledge of the selected regulation.

2 Set-up possibilities for the field calibration check of the measuring system



Fig. 2.1: Example of set-up for the field calibration check with the measuring system BlowerDoor Standard with digital pressure gauge DG-1000 (here: WiFi connection). Other communication links are possible.



Fig. 2.2: Example of set-up for the field calibration check with the measuring system BlowerDoor Standard with digital pressure gauge DG-700 (here: USB connection). Other communication links are possible.



Fig. 2.3: Example of set-up for the field calibration check with the measuring system BlowerDoor MiniFan with digital pressure gauge DG-1000 (here: WiFi connection). The use of DG-700 gauge and other communication links are possible.



Fig. 2.4: Example of a set-up for the field calibration check with the measuring system BlowerDoor MultipleFan with three measuring fans and two DG-1000 devices. The communication is established via a WiFi network. The use of DG-700 gauges and other communication links are possible.

3 Requirements

3.1 System requirements for the software

Computer

For the Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection software to run smoothly, the computer/laptop must meet the following requirements:

- RAM: \geq 1 GB, 2 GB recommended
- Hard drive: ≥ 500 MB free
- Internet connection for software download and installation, and for cloud-based data management and storage, and account and subscription management.

The requirements to the computer/laptop regarding the TECTITE Express or TECLOG software as well as the drivers for your pressure gauge can be found in the reference guide for your BlowerDoor measuring system (\rightarrow <u>https://www.blowerdoor.com/services/downloads-videos/reference-guides</u>).

Operating system

Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection software runs on the full versions of the operating systems:

- Microsoft Windows 10
- Microsoft Windows 8
- Microsoft Windows 7

Software for the FireProtection reports

- DOCX format: compatible with Microsoft Word 2010 and up, OpenOffice 3.3 and up or LibreOffice 3 and up
- PDF Format: Requires Microsoft Word 2010 and up
- Customization of report templates requires Microsoft Word 2010 and up

3.2 Requirements for the BlowerDoor measuring system

Measurements are made using a Minneapolis BlowerDoor measurement system with one or more:

BlowerDoor measuring fan(s):

- BlowerDoor DuctBlaster B fan,
- BlowerDoor model 4 fan, or
- BlowerDoor model 3 fan (220V)

BlowerDoor Software

- TECTITE Express 5.1 (measurements according to ISO 9972 or EN 13829)
- TECTITE Express 4.1 (measurements according to EN 13829)
- TECLOG 4 (measurements according to ISO 9972 or EN 13829) plus TECTITE Express 5.1
- TECLOG 3 (measurements according to EN 13829) plus TECTITE Express 4.1 or up

3.3 Recommended accessories for the field calibration check

BlowerDoor panel with 2 openings, field check ring with 4 sealing plugs, indicating labels (6 pieces), timber wedges (10 pieces), 2 capillary tube (40 cm each), 10 m tube (2 pieces), Velcro strap (2 pieces).

June 2023

Fig. 3.1: Recommended accessories

for field calibration check



and BlowerDoor Standard fan

• DG-700

Digital pressure gauge(s):

DG-1000, or

4 Activating dooApp cloud account and installing Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection software

The software FireProtection allows you to work cloud-based on multiple computers and with multiple members of a team or group of companies.

First, the main account is activated via the dooApp cloud. Then the profile information can be completed, and other individual users can be created and managed. Common data can be set up, shared, and managed via the cloud (e.g., assignment of user rights, customers, devices etc.).

The FireProtection reporting software can be installed on the computers of all individual users and used from there.

4.1 Step no. 1: Activating the dooApp account



Open the e-mail from the software publisher dooApp and klick on "Step n°1" to activate your account in the dooApp cloud.

Fig. 4.1

Please define	e a password to activate your
account ar	nd terminate the creation.
Password *	Password confirmation *

Start activating your dooApp account by defining a password and validate it by clicking on "Activate your account".

Then, in the next window, log in to your account with your e-mail address and the password you just set.

Your account will open.

Fig. 4.2

4.1.1 Completing your profile and company information

de App cloud 👁	Please complete your general infor- mation by selecting			
L Profile	Ger	neral information	Parameters	" <mark>Profile</mark> " in the menu on the left.
🚔 Firm			Cancel Save	Click on
I Projets	Name:			Edit "Edit" to
We Contacts	Numo.	Your Name		
⊁ Equipments	Address:	1 Main Street		the data Confirm
Report templates	City:	Yourtown		the data. Confirm
L Users	Zin code:			your input with
I Offer	Zip code.	2345		"Save".
L Install our softwares	Mail:	your.email@xyz.com		Do the same in the
	Phone:	+49 (0) 12 34 567 890		section "Firm".

Fig. 4.3

The data of your "Profile" will appear in the FireProtection software as your description as technician (\rightarrow Chap. 5.1.1). The data you enter and save in the "Firm" section will appear as your company description (\rightarrow Chap. 5.1.2). The company information will apply to all your users and can be changed by all your users with administrator rights (\rightarrow Chap. 4.1.2).

Note: Both data sets can only be edited online from your dooApp account.

4.1.2 Optional: Adding and managing other users

Via the "Users" section it is possible to add other users to your account and give them the role of an operator and/or administrator.

		English	✓ vour.email@	xyz.com	LOGOUT
de App clou	Add a user				
	Please fill in the following fields				
			_		
Deefle	Last name First				
Prolite	name:				
🚔 Firm	Mail:			aww.uaar	
🔳 Projets			an	ew user	
🖀 Contacts	Roles:		Moc	lify user	
	Operator				
Report template	Administrator		_		
L Users					
🛒 Offer		Cancel	Save		
L Install our softwa	65	_	_		

Fig. 4.4: Section Users

Each user can login on any workstation where FireProtection is installed (\rightarrow Chap. 4.3).

Note:

The tokens to run a project are shared among all your users: Any user of your team can use them. In section "Offer" you can associate subscriptions to a particular user by clicking on the button "Modify" offer" next to that user and checking the desired subscription from the list. You can also dissociate a subscription from a user by unchecking the subscription from his/her list.

1 For further information about using the dooApp cloud \rightarrow Chap. 7.

4.2 Step no. 2: Downloading and installing the software

For the download and installation of the software you need administrator rights and access to the Internet. Either the link in the e-mail from the software publisher or the link in your dooApp account in section "Install our softwares" takes you to the software download link.

d•●App cloud �		English	V your.name@xyz.com LOGOUT
L Profile	Install Infiltrea		
🚔 Firm	Install Infiltrea on your computer with the link below then follow the displayed instructions		
E Projets	🔼 🛓 Download Infiltrea		
🖶 Contacts			
✓ Equipments	After the installation you will need to connect to the software with your account at the first sta	art.	
Report templates	Install Minneanelis PlawarDeer FireProtection		
L Users		the displayed in	
🛒 Offer	Install with each of the Province of the Provi	trie displayed if	nstructions
≟ Install our softwares	♦ ▲ Download Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection		
	After the installation you will need to connect to the software with your account at the first sta	art.	

Fig. 4.5



Fig. 4.6



Before <u>installing</u> Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection make sure that all programs are closed.

Fig. 4.7

Start the installation by double clicking on the downloaded file "FireProtection_Setup.exe" from the publisher dooApp SARL.

4.3 Starting Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection



The software Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection can be started by clicking the icon on the desktop.

Fig. 4.8

II dooApp account							
Your account login and password are required for the first start of the software. Please type them.							
Email	your.email@xyz.com						
Password							
Forgot your password? Click here to reset it							
	Log in Cance						

At the very first start of the software and when you have logged out it is necessary to log in for connecting the software with your account.



Minneapolis BlowerDoor	FireProtection		The Home screen				
FireProtect	Non Home New project		Configuration PHelp 🗊 🔱 Quit	The nome screen wit			
Seath	ion in the project			open. Later, all projects will be listed here.			
423.43 © BoserDoor Gent Fig. 4.10:	Home screen		Loading database				
Updatin	g account information	After login, the so information from	oftware is loading the datab your account at the dooAp	pase and updating the op cloud.			

Fig. 4.11

4.4 Overview home menu

At launch, you get to the Home menu, which has the following options:

Fig. 4.12	Home: Leads back to home screen.
Fig. 4.13	New project: Creates a new project (\rightarrow Chap. 6.3).
Configuration	Configuration: Overview of global settings in the software. Possibility to set e.g. data of customers, devices, templates and more (\rightarrow Chap. 5).
Help <i>Fig. 4.15</i>	Help: Leads to the imprint, FAQ, support form and support phone as well as links for remote help.
Fig. 4.16	Blog: Folds out the blog menu. Clicking the icon again closes the blog.
U Quit Fig. 4.17	Quit: Exits application. When closing the software, all projects are sent to your dooApp cloud account.
d Import project	Import project: Allows you to import existing projects. A sample project is provided.

Fig. 4.18

The menu at the top of the screen is accessible throughout your use of FireProtection.

4.5 Changing software language



In the menu **Configuration** and submenu **Other settings** the language can be changed. The change of the language requires a restart of the software.

Fig. 4.19

5 FireProtection software: Configuration

5.1 Global settings

5.1.1 Technician

The **Technician** subsection contains the information you have specified about yourself as a measurement operator in your dooApp account. This information can only be edited from your online account (\rightarrow Chap. 7). It can be used for all the projects and be included in the reports.

Minneapol	is BlowerDoor FireProtection	ı				- c	×
	FireProtection	Home	New project	Configuration	P Help		ப் Quit
Global settings	Global settings	L Technician	an description				20
Cloud	II Technician	Info					, í
	🚍 Company	Name	Your Name				
	Eustomers						_
	🔄 Devices	Address					
	🕙 Templates						_
	Archiving	Zip code	2345				
	Other settings	City	Yourtown				



5.1.2 Company

The **Company** subsection contains the information you have specified in your dooApp account in the section "Firm". This information can only be edited from the online account by a user with admin rights. The data can be used for all the projects and be included in the reports.

Minneapoli	is BlowerDoor FireProtection					- C) ×
۵	FireProtection	Home 🗹 N	lew project	Configuration	P Help		
Global settings dooApp	Global settings	Company	ty description				25
Cloud	Technician	Inform	nation in this section can only be edited from your online account. You can access it by clicking on your email at the bottom right corner or by	y following this link htt	ps://cloud.	dooapp.c	om
	🚍 Company	Name	Your Company				
	Eustomers						_
	🔄 Devices	Address					
	🕄 Templates						_
	T Archiving	Zip code	2345				
	Other settings	City	Yourtown				



5.1.3 Customers

settings dooApp	Clobal settings	Available contacts in the applic	ation	
	Technician	+ Add a contact	te Search	
	Customers	Contact #1	Name	Contact #1
			Role	årrhitert
	Templates		Noic	Promote
	C Archiving		Address	
	🥵 Other settings		Zip code	
			City	
			City	
			Mail	
			Phone	
			Mobile	
			Siret n°	
				Import image image

The **Customers** subsection in the FireProtection software allows you to set information about your customers.

With click on "Add a customer" a new contact is ready to be filled with data.

All customers are listed.

This information can be used for all the projects and thus be included in the reports, <u>but</u> <u>it can only be accessed by this</u> <u>one user</u>.





Note:

All contacts that you create in the dooApp cloud can be downloaded in the software by you and all the users of your company who have a subscription.

In the software you just have to choose the action "Download devices and contacts" at the bottom right corner of your screen to download and/or update the contacts.

Contacts loaded from the cloud can be updated only there and only by users with administrator rights.

To add a customer for all users of your team, go to your dooApp cloud account (\rightarrow Chap. 7.2).

5.1.4 Devices

Slobal settings dooApp	Clobal settings	Available of	devices in the application		
Cloud	📃 Technician	+ Add a	a device 👻 ີ Delet	e Search	
	E Customers	DG-1000 -	561		
	🕄 Templates 🐻 Archiving	Model 4 - i	230V - CE 6105	(Import Capture
	I Other settings				anage anoge
				Serial :	CE6105
		_		Vendor and model :	Minneapolis Model 4 - 230V
				Last calibration date :	: 01/01/2021 Manage calibrations
				Comment:	
					Add a new document
					1
					Drop your documents here
		Previous			

In the **Devices** subsection information about your measuring devices can be compiled and managed.

After having added and configured a device in the software, it will be available to be associated to the projects, **but** only by this one user.

All devices are listed.





Note:

All devices that you create online in the dooApp cloud in section "Equipment" can be downloaded in the software by you and all the users of your company who have a subscription.

Choose the action "Download devices and contacts" at the bottom right corner of your FireProtection screen to download and/or update the data.

Devices loaded from the cloud can be updates only there and only by users with administrator rights.



To add a new device that all users of your team can access to, go to your dooApp cloud account (\rightarrow Chap. 7.3).

5.1.5 Add a device and define calibration information in FireProtection software

Note: Devices added in the FireProtection software can only be used by this user. To add a new device that all users of your team can access to, go to dooApp cloud account (\rightarrow Chap. 7.3).



After clicking the button "Add a device" you must first select the type of the device to be added.

Subsequently, the device details can be specified with the serial number, the model designation, comments and calibration information. Calibration certificates can be added by drag and drop.

Fig. 5.7

Manage calibrations

To enter calibration date, click on the "Manage calibrations" button.

For each calibration you can define calibration information by clicking "Add a new calibration certificate". You can enter the validity start date and add a calibration certificate in documents area.

Information about valid calibration is used in calculations and is added to the generated reports. In a project, the selected fan must have a valid calibration to be able to add to a measurement.

Fig. 5.8

Calibration of the device		-					\times
This windows allows to manage your	te	ificats history of your devie	ce.				
Calibration from 07/10/2019 to 07/	Validity start o	late :	10/07/2019				^
	Recommende	d date of next calibration :	10/07/2021				
		Add a new document					
		T-190244_DG-10 PDF (Pages: 1-6)		¢ 🖬 í	ל		
	Documents :						
<							~
						Clo	ose



5.1.6 Templates



Fig. 5.10

files. This pattern can contain several predefined variables. When editing your report, the file is automatically named using your pattern.

In the **Templates** section it

is possible to define a

default name for report

You can also manage different report templates. → Chap. 6.11 for how to customize templates with Microsoft Word.

5.1.7 Archiving



June 2023

In Archiving menu projects can be saved in a custom location and deleted permanently from the local database.

Before archiving your projects, we strongly recommend to send them online to your dooApp cloud as a second backup.

Fig. 5.11

5.1.8 Other settings



Fig. 5.12

In **Other Settings** menu it is possible to change the software language (\rightarrow Chap. 4.5) and to create backups.

When clicking on *"Backup database"* opens a dialog box where you can specify the location for the backup folder.

When restoring database from backups you will receive warning messages. Restoring leads to a restart of the software and the home screen will open.

5.2 dooApp cloud settings



Fig. 5.13

As default, all projects are automatically sent to your dooApp cloud account when closing FireProtection software (\rightarrow (\rightarrow). By unchecking the check box, this automatic saving is switched off. It is still possible to manually trigger the online saving of individual projects (\rightarrow Chap. 6.1) or all projects by clicking the "Send all projects" button (\rightarrow (\rightarrow).

6 FireProtection projects

6.1 Project list and saving status

All current projects are listed on the home screen and can be selected/opened from there. There are three different indicators for their status:

	Online	•••
Fig. 6.1		

Projects stored online in the dooApp cloud are marked as "online". They are stored there in your secured personal space.

Note: When closing FireProtection software, all projects will be sent automatically to your dooApp cloud account with their editing status at that time. When you reopen your software, they will be marked as "online".

It is possible to switch off automatic saving of new and updated projects when closing FireProtection software. For details see \rightarrow Chap. 5.2.



Unsecured new projects can be send manually to your dooApp cloud account by clicking on "Send online". When you quit the software, all projects will be sent automatically to your dooApp Cloud account (see above).







Updated projects can be manually sent to the dooApp cloud. When you quit the software, all projects will be sent automatically to your dooApp Cloud account (see above).

To download projects from your dooApp cloud account choose the action "Download project" at the bottom right corner of your FireProtection screen. All saved projects are listed and can be selected for download.

6.2 Import/Export project files

Due to cloud services, projects files can be imported and exported to transfer, share and save/archive.



Clicking on the three dots opens the menu.

When duplicating a project, the file screen of the new project opens. All data from the original project is included in this new project.

Clicking on "Export" a dialog box will open to specify a location for the project file. Exported projects files get the extension .infiltrea.



FireProtection project files can be imported via the "Import project" button or simply by drag'n'drop into the project list on home screen.

6.3 Creating a new project

New projectBy clicking the "New project" button, a window will open to start the configurationFig. 6.7of your new project.

Fig. 6.7

Fig. 6.6



Only if FireProtection is selected as the Project type (the "FireProtection" button is grayed out), a project can be created.

File type

You can choose between:

- Creating a "New file" for your project,
- Selecting an "Existing file" in which to store your new project. (This option is no longer current and will be removed from the software shortly.)

As soon as you click the "Create" button, you will be brought to the file screen of your new project (\rightarrow Fig. 6.9).

Fig. 6.8

I Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection						×
Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	Home	New project	Configuration	P Help		
En File	En File					55
Home Extinguishant Customer Docing	Name	# 8D 101 - Sample Project				
Measurement Model time Hold time Report		Import Capture image				
	Address	1, BlowerDoor Street				
	City	Minneapolis				
	Zip code	11111				
	Previo	us	Confirm a	nd next		Next
4.23.43 © BlowerDoor GmbH 2021		D	ownload project 👻	Your Na your.en	ame nail@xyz.	com +

June 2023

Fig. 6.9: File screen



Fig. 6.10

Note:

A report is only available after having confirmed all menu items by "Confirm and next". Validated menus are displayed with a tick mark.

It is always possible to return to the previous menu by clicking on "Previous". There it is possible to unmark confirmed menus by clicking the "Reopen" button.

The following screen will be the home screen of your new project.

6.4 Entering general information about project and tested enclosure

The **Home** section allows to provide a name and a reference number to your project, to select your reference norm, to describe all specifications of your test enclosure including the type of fire risk involved.

Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	n				-	- 0	1 ×
Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	Home	🛃 New pr	oject	Configuration	P Help		
En File	Home						52
A Home	General in	formation					K 3
🛃 Extinguishant	Home						
E Customer	Name	Sample proj	ect				
M Devices	Reference	BD-101					
Measurement	Norm	ISO 14520 (2015)				•
O Hold time	Diek	Class & Isua	han fen)				
E Report	NISK	Class A (sui	are me)				<u> </u>
	Tested r	oom					
	Commissio	oning year	2021				
	Pressure in	put method	User input				-
	Altitude		150				m
	Altimeter p	oressure	98150				Pa
	Prescribed	temperature	20				*c
	Height Ho		6				5
	Height Ho		Overall height of enclosure.				- "
	Volume		850				m³
	Volume co	rrection	85				m³
	Net volum	e V	765				m ³
			Enclosure net volume (used in the calculations).				
	Shape		Standard				•
	_						~
	Previous			Confirm a	nd next		Next
4.23.43 © BlowerDoor GmbH 2021				wnload project 👻	Your Nar your.em	me ail@xyz.c	com 👻

Fig. 6.11: Home section is the start screen for projects

In detail:

- Name: Project Name
- Reference: Project Reference
- Norm: Selection of the measurement standards
- Risk: Kind of fire risk run by the enclosure
- Commissioning year: Year of construction/start-up of the enclosure

6 FireProtection projects

- **Pressure input method:** You can either choose "Altitude based calculation" and enter an "Altitude" directly below to calculate the Altimeter pressure (with ISO altitude factors). Or you can choose "User input" to enter directly the atmospheric pressure in the "Altimeter pressure" field.
- Altitude: Altitude/Height above sea level of the enclosure
- Altimeter pressure: Atmospheric Pressure in the enclosure
- Prescribed temperature: Recommended temperature of the enclosure
- **Height H**_o: Overall height of the enclosure
- Volume: Volume of the enclosure measured by the Technician
- Volume correction: Adjustments to the volume of the enclosure. For example, the volume of a completely sealed unit in the enclosure does not influence the retention of the extinguishant. Therefore, it must be taken away from the "gross" volume of the enclosure.
- **Net volume V:** This is the result volume equal to the measured volume to which the adjustment is applied. This is the only value used in the calculations; the others will be displayed for information purposes only.
- Shape: Shape of the enclosure. "Standard" is the most common, i.e. rectangular enclosure

6.5 Configuring the installed extinguishant

The **Extinguishant** screen allows you to describe the specifications of your extinguishing installation and to enter the desired retention conditions.

Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection					- C	×
Mineapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	ome 📝 New project	🛟 Config	juration	🥊 Help		ப் Quit
En File	nguishant					55
A Home	ied extinguisnant configuration					
Extinguishant Extin	inguishant					- 1
Extin	inguishant		*		Force mix	ing
S Devices						
O Measurement Cont	figuration					
O Hold time	Pimensioning Wizard					
E Report This						
De		0			× (
Tar		0			%	
		Initial concentration of extinguishant in the air for the enclosure at the beginning of the hold time.				
Rec					kg	•
▲ P	Please insert a valid initial g	pas concentration				
Extir	inguishing quantity				kg	-
Ci in	nput method	Calculated from extinguishant quantity			•	
Initia	ial concentration Ci				%	
	h	vitial concentration of extinguishant in the air for the enclosure at the eginning of the hold time.				
Cmi	in input method	Calculated from design concentration			Ŧ	
Mini	nimum concentration Cmin	0			%	~

Fig. 6.12: Extinguishant screen

6.5.1 Extinguishant



Use the drop-down menu to select the type of installed extinguishant.

After selection, the chemical formula, CAS registry number and the extinguishant density at 20°C and 101325 Pa atmospheric pressure are listed.

Fig. 6.13



Extinguishants can be either heavier than air (icon of a downward-pointing arrow) or have the same density as air (icon of two circular arrows).

Fig. 6.14

It is possible to force a heavier-than-air gas to behave as a gas with the same density through a mixing device. In this case, click the Force mixing button. To go back, click the same button again.



Since nitrogen (IG 100) has approximately the same density as air, Force mixing $\overset{\circ}{\cup}$ Force mixing is preset.

6.5.2 Configuration

The **Dimensioning Wizard** <u>helps</u> you to determine the minimum quantity of extinguishant that you have to install in order to get the target initial concentration in the tested room.



To get help about the Design concentration click on the book icon.

Fig. 6.15

Please find here be For information pu Please note that th	low Design concentration data for each norm and agent. rposes only, you can pick any norm and related agents from the following drop-down l is won't affect your project nor modify your data.	ist, this will provide you with the Design concentration values for each.
Configuration		
Norm	ISO 14520:2015	
Extinguishant	FM200 (HFC 227 ea)	•
You can however r	nodify your project's Design concentration risk data, by selecting the following options.	
Design concer	tration by risk	
Risk	Design concentration (% by vol)	
Class A (surface	īre) 7.9	Select >
Class A (higher)	8.5	Select >
Heptan	9	Select >

For information purposes only, you can select a norm and one of the related agents from the drop-down list, which will provide you with the "Design concentration by risk".



Note: Selecting a norm and an extinguishant in the Dimensioning Wizard does <u>not</u> change the previously entered project data!

Depending on the risk, you can use the "Select" button to choose the value of one of these options.

The Dimensioning Wizard	
This tool gives you an estimation o	of extinguishing quantity to install to get target initial cond
	7.9
Target initial concentration	7.9
	Initial concentration of extinguishant in the air for the enclosure at the beginning of the hold time.
	478.4112897939875

Fig. 6.17

The Design concentration is now displayed.

Enter into the Target initial concentration field the desired concentration (in %)

An amount in kg or m³ will appear in the Required extinguishing quantity field below. This quantity is calculated based on the selected extinguishant and on the volume and altitude of the testing enclosure.



Fig. 6.20

Below The Dimensioning Wizard you must enter the actual quantity of extinguishant installed in the **Extinguishing quantity** field and select the unit kg or m³: This is the amount that will be taken into account.

Next, you must determine the actual **Initial concentration ci**. First you select the **Ci input method**. You can do this in three different ways:

- You can select Design concentration.
- Or you can select Calculated from extinguishant quantity: The initial concentration is then calculated according to the actual quantity installed.
- Or User input, which allows you to manually enter the initial concentration of your choice.
 You can determine the Minimum concentration
 Cmin by first selecting Cmin input method:
- You can either select Calculated from design concentration: The minimum concentration is then determined by standard recommenddations, risk and the chosen extinguishant (in general 85%).

Note: The Required extinguishing quantity shown by the Wizard is just a suggestion!

		concentrat
Required protected height	90%	Required prote
	(percent)	This is the hoig
Required protected height Hp	5.4	This is the heig
	Required height of at the end of the hold time.	volume covere
Fig. 6.21		less than the to and equipment
Specified hold time	10	Specified hold
	Hold Time required by the norm.	
Fig. 6.22		Complying with that any possible
		smothered. In general, the 10 minutes; otl authority.
Lower leakage fraction F	50	Lower leakage
	Effective leakage area of lower leaks divided by effective leakage area leaks.	Distribution of
Fig. 6.23		default value m

- Or you can select Extinguishing concentration: It corresponds to the minimum concentration required to extinguish a fire involving a particular fuel under defined experimental conditions excluding any safety factor.
- or User input to manually enter the minimum • tion of your choice.

ected height [%]

ht marking the upper range of the d by the fire protection. (It may be otal height of the room, if the objects t to protect do not reach the ceiling

time [min.]

within which you wish that the of extinguishant remains at least tinction concentration in a volume st the protected height required. h this period of time aims at ensuring le fire started in the enclosure is

minimum hold time must be at least herwise, it should be specified by the

fraction [%]

June 2023

upper and lower leaks. The 50 % neans that leaks are equally distributed between the upper part and the lower part of the enclosure.

6.6 Customer

When clicking on Select (1) the Customer selection window opens. Available contacts are listed. You can search for (2) and select a customer or add a new one (3).



Fig. 6.24



Fig. 6.25

Note:

All **contacts** that you create in the dooApp cloud can also be downloaded in the software by you and all the users of your company who have a subscription.

You just have to choose the action "Download devices and contacts" at the bottom right corner of your screen to download and/or update the contacts.

Contacts loaded from the cloud can be changed only there and only by users with administrator rights.

6.7 Devices

You can select devices used for the test from the devices you have saved in the **Configuration** section of the software.

Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	n		-		×
Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	Home 🗹 New project	Configuration	P Help		ل Quit
En File ↑ Home	Select the devices used during this sample Model 4 - 230V - CE6105				23
Extinguishant	Duct Blaster (MiniFan)				
E Customer	✓ ✓ Model 4 - 230V - CE1440 - calibration with DAkkS certificate ✓ DG-1000 - 561				
X Devices	DG-700 - 63958				
Measurement	Duct Blaster (MiniFan) - CE1833 - calibration with DAkkS certificate				
O Hold time					
Report					
	Previous	Confirm a	ind next	-	Next
4.23.43 © BlowerDoor GmbH 2021		ownload project	Your Nar your.ema	ne nil@xyz.c	om 🔫

Fig. 6.26



Fig. 6.27

Note:

June 2023

All devices that you create in the dooApp cloud in section **Equipment** can also be downloaded in the software by you and all the users of your company who have a subscription.

Choose the action "Download devices and contacts" at the bottom right corner of your FireProtection screen to download and/or update the data.

Devices loaded from the cloud can be changed only there and only by users with administrator rights.

6.8 Setting up a door fan test and importing measurement data

6.8.1 Configuration

Once you have defined the project components, you can perform a measurement (door fan test) with BlowerDoor system and software and then import measurement data from TECTITE Express 5.1, TECTITE Express 4.1 (1). Data from the TECLOG 3 or TECLOG 4 must first be opened and saved in TECTITE Express.

At the bottom of your screen, in the Leakage Opening Area field (2) you can enter the leakage area of the opening you have sealed for the test. This area will then be added to the Effective Leakage Area measured during the retention time calculation test.



Fig. 6.28: Measurement screen, sub-section Configuration



Fig. 6.29

Click the "Import from TECTITE Express" button to import measurement data from a BLD file.

A window opens to warn you that a <u>token will be</u> <u>consumed</u> with the import of measurement data.

If you confirm with OK, a window opens that allows you to select your file.

Note: Only BLD files from TECTITE Express Version 5.1 and 4.1 can be imported.

The exported data from TECLOG 4 or TECLOG 3 must first read into TECTITE Software and must be saved there.

Measurement files from previous TECTITE Express versions have the same file extension ".bld", but are not able to be imported to the software FireProtection!

June 2023

Import TECTITE Express 5		—		×
Please select data you wa	int to ii	nport		
Order of the test realization	√ De	oressure	then pr	essure
	Pre	ssure the	en depre	essure
 ✓ Measurement configur Test date : 2020-03-20 ✓ Sample data 	ration			
Number of points (Depressure High pressure target (Depress Low pressure target (Depressu	/Pressure) ure/Pressu ire/Pressu	:7 ine):65 Pa re):17 Pa		
Tested room informatio Volume : Indicated volume : Commissioning year : Height Ho :	n			
		Yes	G	ancel

Fig. 6.30

You can select data that you want to import from this file.

Essential information concerning the measurement is imported by selecting Measurement configuration and Sample data.

Note: The Tested room information checking boxes may replace information you have previously entered. If this data is empty in the TECTITE Express file, it will not be selected by default.

You must specify which measurement was performed at first: "Depressure then pressure" or "Pressure then depressure".

All data you select by a tick in the check box will be imported from BLD file in your project. The screen containing your measurement data will be displayed.

6.8.2 Measurement data (Data entry)



You can view measurement data in the **Data entry** sub-section:

Fig. 6.31: Measurement screen, sub-section Data entry

On the upper part of the screen, you can see real-time indicators calculated from imported measurement data, including the

- Equivalent leakage area ELA of the tested enclosure
- leakage characteristic k₁
- leakage characteristic n,
- correlation coefficients r (pressure) and r (depressure) for the pressurization test curve and for the depressurization test curve,
- initial extinguishant/air column pressure Pmi,
- height of equivalent sharp interface H_e and
- the results of intermediate calculations Q_{Im} and Q_{Im/2}.



On the top right of the screen, icons warn you if some standard rules are not respected. If an exclamation point is displayed, hover your cursor above the icon to view the problem.

In the center, you can see the fan flow curves for the depressurization/pressurization measurement of the tested enclosure. The curve for the pressurization measurement is colored blue and the one for the depressurization measurement is red.

Below are the data details:

Zero flow pressure difference measurement before the test
Average 0.09957

Fig. 6.33

Pf goal (Pa)	Pf + Pbt (Pa)	Pf (Pa)	Fan flow Qf (m ³ /s)	Ring	
-65	-65.67	-65.77	0.53	A	^
-59	-57.15	-57.25	0.5	A	
-53	-50.36	-50.46	0.48	Α	
-47	-47.71	-47.81	0.42	A	
-41	-40.95	-41.05	0.4	A	
-35	-34.31	-34.41	0.36	В	
-29	-28.53	-28.63	0.31	В	
-23	-25.44	-25.54	0.27	В	
-17	-17.93	-18.02	0.21	В	
					~

Fig. 6.34

Zero flow pressure difference measurement before the test:

Pressure difference between the interior and the exterior of the enclosure while the fan is not working yet.

Depressurization testing:

In this test, the enclosure is depressurized, and the measurements are taken at different stages of pressure in compliance with the test configuration. By default, there are as many measurements as numbers of entered points. The target pressure stages are spread into higher and lower pressure stages so that they are equidistant.

For each of these ranges, you can see the pressure difference actually reached (which must be as close as possible to the target pressure difference), the fan flow and the fan ring.

Pf goal (Pa)	Pf + Pbt (Pa)	Pf (Pa)	Fan flow Qf (m ³ /s)	Ring
-65	63.81	63.71	0.53	A
-59	57.56	57.47	0.5	A
-53	52.08	51.98	0.47	A
-47	45.95	45.85	0.43	A
-41	41.31	41.21	0.39	A
-35	35.34	35.25	0.36	В
-29	27.48	27.38	0.3	В
-23	23.97	23.87	0.27	В
-17	13.81	13.71	0.23	В

Fig. 6.35

Zero flow pressure difference measurement after the test Average -0.09657

Fig. 6.36

Pressurization testing:

In this test, the enclosure is pressurized, and the measurements are taken at different stages of pressure in compliance with the test configuration.

Zero flow pressure difference measurement after the test:

Pressure difference between the interior and the exterior of the enclosure while the fan is off.

6.8.3 Field calibration check

This first series of measurements was used to determine the Effective Leakage Area (ELA). A second series aims validating the fan calibration.



Fig. 6.37

To perform a field calibration check, it is necessary:

- to "artificially" increase the measured ELA by adding a hole to the enclosure equivalent to around 50% of the measured ELA (for example: a 50 cm² hole added for a 100 cm² ELA),
- For this purpose, all measurement series of the previous test are repeated with the added opening. The aim is to verify that the new calculated ELA is consistent with the one, which is logically expected (ELA calculated during the previous test plus the area of the added orifice), with a maximum tolerance of 15%.

You can do that by performing a second test by installing a BlowerDoor panel with two openings. In one opening, the Minneapolis BlowerDoor fan is installed and in the other one, the field-check-ring with sealing plugs is fixed. This field-check-ring includes four different openings/orifices (530 cm², 200 cm², 100 cm² and 50 cm²).

BlowerDoor panels with two openings and the field-check-ring are offered, among others, as optional accessories by BlowerDoor GmbH.

Minn	eapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection								-	\Box ×
	Minneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection	Home	📝 New project					Configuration	🕊 Help 🔳	U Quit
E. File	Measurement	😵 Field Ca	alibration Check (E.2.7.5)							55
Home Exting Exting Curror Curror	uis Configuration The Data entry Field Collibration Check Field Collibration Check Bibas pressure	Add a h In a shee measurad A geome other cor Please ac Added c The field o Zero filo Average	ole to frigid material, less than th lei norease inthe enclosure's trial area about of the enclosure meinter enclosure opening about dated ELA is 656.86 cm ² . da hole area 530 anthe about 328.43 cm ² . Spening area 530 calibration check is acceptable to w pressure difference me 0.72711	ick and free of any penetrations cut a leakage rate, but not so large that a di sure's equivalent leakage area is likely in a consider that this will modify the en- course the difference between measured assurement, before the test	Liport from	ration check onflice. The area of nit must be used to measure the theet in an unused fan unit port erristic and reduce the accuracyon the added orffice and what was a	the orifice shall be large enough t increased flow. If possible. Otherwise, install the s the field calibration check. sepected is slight (< 15%).	to cause an easily theet in some cm ²	ELA 1201,4 cm ² Expected I 1186,8 cm ³ ELA differe 2.75 % validatio	LA 5 nce
		Depress	sure difference measurem	ent					20.2037 Pa	<u>}</u>
			Pf goal (Pa)	Pf + Pbt (Pa)		Fan flow Qf (m ³ /s)	Ring		Qlm	
		-60		-63.2	0.86		A	^	0.54024	1
		-55		-59.42	0.81		A			
		-50		-55.68	0.8		A		Qlm/2	
		-45		-47.57	0.73		A		0.3637	3
		-40		-43.51	0.69		A			
		-35		-37.14	0.63		A		61	
		-20		-20.05	0.54		٨	~	0.0000	
		Pressure	e difference measuremen	t					0.0802: m³/(s.Pa^i	1)
		Previou	Pf doal (Pa)	Pf + Pbt (Pa)		Fan flow Qf (m³/s)	Rina	Confirm a	and next	Next
4.23.43	© BlowerDoor GmbH 2021						et de De	wnload project 👻	Your Name your.email@x	yz.com -

Fig. 6.38: Measurement screen, sub-section Field Calibration Check

The screen displays the **Field Calibration Check** sub-section. The ELA of the previous test is remembered, and the size of the opening/orifice to be added is suggested. Below, you can enter a slightly different area, equivalent to the actual added opening area.



Import of the TECTITE Express file is done in the same way as for the door fan test (\rightarrow Chap.6.8.1).

Note:

Fig. 6.39

Only BLD files from TECTITE Express 5.1, TECTITE Express 4.1 can be imported. The exported data from TECLOG 4 or TECLOG 3 must first read into TECTITE Software and must be saved there.



Fig. 6.40:

At the top right, in addition to the ELA, three additional indicators are displayed:

- the expected ELA,
- the ELA difference: percentage difference between the calculated ELA and the expected ELA,
- the validation or non-validation of this calibration phase.
 In case of non-validation, recalibrating devices is required, and it is necessary to repeat the test later to comply with the standard.

6.8.4 Pressure differential measurement during hold time (Pbh)

Pbh is the pressure differential in retention conditions used for calculating hold time. Enter the Pbh measured at the lower leakage in the left column and the Pbh at the upper leakage in the right one.

Minneapolis BlowerDoor	reProtection	- 🗆 ×							
Minneapelis Blower FireProtect	m 🛱 Home 📝 New project	🗘 Configuration 🎈 Help 📰 🕛 Quit							
File - O Measure	hent Sias pressure Measurement of bias pressure under hold time conditions (E.2.7.6)	2							
Catinguis Catinguis	Configuration Configu								
	Pbh (Pa)	Pbh (Pa)							
	-1 2								
	-1.5								
	Previous	Confirm and next Next							
4.23.43 © BlowerDoor Gmb	H 2021	Download project							

Fig. 6.41: Measurement screen, sub-section Bias pressure

The measurement is taken between a fixed reference point inside the test chamber and a point immediately adjacent to the lower leakage (Pbh (lower)) and a point immediately adjacent to the upper leakage (Pbh (upper)). If the enclosure is large, repeat the two measurements at several points. Add measurements to columns by clicking the 💷 button.

You can delete a measurement by clicking the 💼 button next to the measurement.



Fig. 6.42



Fig. 6.43



As before, two icons on the right show you, if a test standard is not met.

Hover your cursor over the icon for details.



Pbh measurement

The figure at the left shows how to measure the bias pressure under hold time conditions using a pressure gauge DG-1000 or DG-700, a piece of tube and a capillary tube (indicated with 1).

Capillary tubes consist of the capillary (2) and the connecting piece for the pressure line (3) (\rightarrow Fig. 6.45 below).



Fig. 6.44

Fig. 6.45

This capillary tube and a 10 m tube are offered, among others, as required accessories by BlowerDoor GmbH.

June 2023

6.9 Hold time

In the **Hold Time** section, the expected hold time for this measurement is displayed: the numerical display in the upper right corner of the screen, below the graphical display.

Depending on the condition of the extinguishant used, either the estimated Protected Height H or the Minimum Concentration (Cmin) is given in addition to the holding time.

🔳 Mi	inneapolis BlowerDoor FireProtection					-	□ ×
	Minneapolis BlawerDoor FireProtection	Home	New project	Configuration	P Help		ப் Quit
E, File		o Hold tir	ne				53
n Ho		Hold time	result view				
👔 Ext	inguishant 🗸					Hold	i time
💷 Cus	stomer ~	6				13 m	in 50 s
SK De					_ L		
🛈 Me	asurement >					Protecte	ed Height
Ó Ho		-					
🗄 Rep						5.	.57
		4-			L		m
		ut (u					
		10 1 3-					
		2-					
		1					
		0					
			1 2 3 4 3 6 7 8 9 10 11 Hold time (min)	12 13	14		
		Previous		Confirm a	nd next		Next
4.23.43	3 © BlowerDoor GmbH 2021			n Download project	Your N your.er	lame nail@xyz	z.com 👻

If the extinguishant used is heavier than air and is not force mixed:

Fig. 6.46: Display of the hold time for extinguishants heavier than air (not mixed)

The x-axis shows the time in minutes and the y-axis the protected height in meter. At the start of the retention time, the enclosure is completely filled with gas. Then over time, due to leakages in the enclosure, gas slowly escapes. Because the extinguishing gas is heavier than air, the protected height will gradually decrease. The expected hold time is when the height of extinguishant exactly matches the risk height entered by the user.

The red line represents this risk height. When the green line indicating the protected height over time meets the red one, a blue dotted line is vertically drawn which specifies the hold time. The vertical black dotted line indicates the minimum hold time.



If the extinguishant used has the same density as air or it is mixed:

Fig. 6.47: Display of the hold time for extinguishants with the same density as air or force mixed

The x-axis shows the time in minutes, the y-axis indicates the gas concentration in the enclosure in percent. At the start of the retention time, the enclosure is completely filled with gas to a concentration equal to the initial concentration entered by the user. Then over time, due to leakages in the enclosure, gas slowly escapes. Because the gas is as dense as air, the global concentration of extinguishant will slowly decrease. The expected hold time is when this concentration exactly matches the minimum extinguishing concentration entered by the user.

The red line represents this minimum extinguishing concentration. When the green – line indicating the extinguishing concentration over time – meets the red one, a blue dotted line is vertically drawn which specifies the hold time. The vertical black dotted line indicates the minimum hold time.

6.10 Report

In the **Report section**, it is possible to generate a report containing all the information of the operation. A report template by default is included in the FireProtection software.



For creating and using your own templates \rightarrow Chap. 6.11.

Fig. 6.48: Report screen





Fig. 6.49



Fig. 6.50

1 a) To generate a report as DOCX file, click the Word icon on the left. A dialog window will open to specify a location and to enter a name for the created file. It is possible to modify the report in Microsoft Word.

(1 b) To generate a report as a PDF file, click the PDF icon on the right. A dialog window will open to specify a location and to enter a name for the created file.

Afterwards, the generated report can be integrated into the project e.g. to share it with colleagues.

(2) To add your report click on the "Select a report" button and select it in the dialog window that opens. The report will be sent along with the project.

If you have changed the report in the meantime or want to attach another report, click the "Select a report" button again to add the current report and replace the old version.

6.11 Customizing report templates and using them

Report templates can be customized with Microsoft Word. Open **Configuration** menu (1) and the subsection **Templates** (2).

Minneapoli	s BlowerDoor FireProtection				-	- [) ×
۵	FireProtection	Home	✓ New project	1 Configuration	P Help		
Global settings	Global settings	A Template	is anagment				55
Cloud	Technician	FireProtecti	on				
	Company	Report name					
	Customers		Default name for report files. Click in this field to get more informations.				
	🔄 Devices						
2	🔧 Templates		Default				
	Archiving		Default report template				<u> </u>
	Other settings						



Fig. 6.52

The "Add new template" button opens a dialog box where you can:

- either specify a location and file name for a duplicate of the default template file to edit later
- or import a template file previously created by you or another user of your team. Select the desired file.

Minneapoli	s BlowerDoor FireProtection				-		\times
۵	FireProtection	Home	New project	Configuration	P Help	I)	し Quit
Global settings	Global settings	Template m	25 25				55
Cloud	Technician	FireProtect	ion				
	🚍 Company	Report name					
	E Customers		Default name for report files. Click in this field to get more informations.				
	S Devices						
	🔍 Templates		Default Default report template				\Box
	Archiving		Despons reports compones				
	Other settings		Personal report template.docx Default report template Mt\09c, Entwicklung_Anleitungen\06, FireProtection\Entwicklung_2021\Personal report template.docx		(2	1] 1

Fig. 6.53



Click on the "Edit template" button of the newly created template. This will open your custom template within Microsoft Word. There you can apply your own corporate identity charter.



Fig. 6.55

To select your own report template, click on the Word or PDF icon in the **Report** menu and use it to create the test report based on your template.

Several different report templates can be stored.

7 dooApp cloud services

The dooApp cloud services allow to save FireProtection data online in the company's own cloud storage space. This allows:

- Online management of account and company information (→ Chap. 4.1.1) to share it among users of a team working on different computers
- Online management of contacts and equipment provides access to customer data and device information for all users (→ Chap. 7.2 and 7.3)
- Automatic saving of projects in the dooApp cloud (→ Chap. 6.1)
- Sharing of projects and reports between different users/workstations (\rightarrow Chap. 6.2)

7.1 Log in to dooApp cloud account



Fig. 7.1

	Connection
å	Email
	Password
	Login
Forg	ot password?

Log in with your e-mail address and your password.

To open your personal account in dooApp cloud click in the

FireProtection software at the bottom right on your login name

or go directly to the website https://cloud.dooapp.com/#/login.

Fig. 7.2

7.2 Managing contacts for all users of your team

Contacts that you create and edit online in the **Contacts** section are available to you and all users in your team after downloading them to your/their FireProtection software (\rightarrow Chap. 5.1.3 \rightarrow Fig. 5.4), where they can be selected as **Customer** in your projects (\rightarrow Chap. 6.6).

All users with admin rights can "Add a new contact", they can "Edit" and delete (m) existing contacts.

d●App cloud �					English v	your.name@xyz.com LOGO					
Profile											
▲ Firm		veu erecto horo con ele	o bo downloadad in th	o coffuero bu vou or	ad all the upera of your Firm	n who have a subassistion					
C Open Promevent	In the contacts that you create here can also be downloaded in the software by you and all the users of your Firm who have a subscription. In the software you just have to choose the action "Download devices and contacts" at the bottom right corner of your screen to download and few under the software product.										
I Projets		contacto.									
👑 Contacts	Role	Name	Mail	Phone	Address						
✓ Equipments	Engineering	Joe Miller			2 High Street						
Report templates	consultant	ooe miller			5678 Anytown	Edit 🔟					
L Users	Constructor	Robert Martin	r martin@mail (le	Stadtstraße 253						
I Offer	Sensitivetor	. toport maran	artin@mail.		30175 Hannover	Edit 🎟					
L Install our softwares	Add a new con	tact									

Fig. 7.3

7.3 Managing devices

Devices can be created and edited online in the **Equipment** section. This database can then be downloaded in your FireProtection software and that of all users in your team (\rightarrow Chap. 5.1.4 \rightarrow Fig. 5.6), and then selected as the project device (\rightarrow Chap. 6.7).

All users with admin rights can "Add a new device", they can "Edit" and delete (a) existing devices.

						E	inglish v	your.name@xy	z.com LOG
l●App cloud ✿									
R Profile	≣ Equipment	s							
Firm	The devices that y	/ou create h	iere can also b	e downloaded	l in the softwa	re by you and all the us	ers of your Firm	ı who have a sub	scription.
Open Promevent	In the software yo and/or update the	u just have devices	to choose the a	action "Downl	oad devices a	nd contacts" at the bott	om right corner	of your screen to	download
Projets									
Contacts					Serial				
€ Equipments	Name	Туре	Brand	Model	number	Comments			
Report templates		Gauge	Minneapolis	DG-1000	561		Calibratio	ons Edit	â
Users		Fan	Minneapolis	Model 4 -	CE6105		Calibratio	ons Edit	
Ø Offer				230V					
Install our softwares	BlowerDoor rental device	Fan	Minneapolis	Model 4 - 230V	CE1440	calibration with DAkkS certificate	Calibratio	ons Edit	Ē
		Gauge	Minneapolis	DG-700	60470		Calibratio	ons Edit	前
	Add a new dev	rice							

Fig. 7.4

Fig. 7.5

Calibrations Define your calibration certificates online and receive warning e-mails when your device calibration is running out.

Clicking on "Calibrations" button to open the following window:

deeApp clot Device calibrations	English V I vour.email	@xyz.com LOGOUT
1 + Add a calibration certificate ⁽¹⁾ Delete 2 Calibration ⁽¹⁾		
Firm C Open Promever E Projets	Cancel Save	subscription. In to download



First click on "+ Add a calibration certificate", then click on the newly created "Calibration" button below. The following window opens, where you can set calibration details and add documents (e.g. calibration certificate).

do App clou Dev	ice calibrations			English - vo	ur.email@xyz.com LOGOUT
+	Add a calibration certificate	te			
Profile Profile Firm C Open Promever Frojets Contacts Contacts Cequipments Report template	Calibration - 16/07/2021	Validity 16/07/2021 start date: Validity 15/07/2023 end date: Documents: Add document Name	Actions		t subscription. en to download
Lusers ✓ Offer Linstall our softwa		Th	a list is empty		
				Cancel Sav	e



© BlowerDoor GmbH / 2023

BlowerDoor GmbH MessSysteme für Luftdichtheit • Zum Energie- und Umweltzentrum 1 • D-31832 Springe-Eldagsen Phone +49 5044 975-40 • Fax +49 5044 975-44 • info@blowerdoor.com • www.blowerdoor.com